Self-directed learning series:

Registered Nurse Delegation in Oregon

Continuing education course for nurses practicing in Oregon's community-based long-term care settings

January 2008

(2nd edition: August 2008)

Contents

INTRODUCTION	1
MODULE ONE: Oregon RN delegation fundamentals	2
Module One learner objectives	2
RN delegation in Oregon	2
Division 47 definitions	4
Delegation	4
Unlicensed person	4
Tasks of nursing care	5
Community-based care setting	5
MODULE TWO: The process of RN delegation in Oregon	6
Module Two learner objectives	6
The delegation process	6
The decision to delegate or not	10
The process of periodic inspection, supervision and evaluation of a task of nursing care	10
MODULE THREE: RN delegation practice situations	13
Module Three learner objectives	13
When the delegating and supervising RNs are two different individuals	13
Transferring of delegation and supervision from one RN to another.	13
Rescinding delegation	14
Post test questions	16
Application for 4.0 continuing education (CE) contact hours	19
Post test answer sheet	20
Course evaluation	21

Appendix documents	. 22
References	. 22
Appendix contact information	. 22

INTRODUCTION

Welcome to Oregon Department of Human Services Seniors and People with Disabilities (SPD) *Self-Directed Learning Series: Registered Nurse Delegation in Oregon.* The goal of this self-directed learning series is to assist registered nurses in attaining a *fundamental understanding* of registered nurse delegation in Oregon.

This RN delegation learning series consists of three separate and sequential modules:

- 1. Oregon RN delegation fundamentals,
- 2. The process of RN delegation in Oregon, and
- 3. RN delegation practice situations.

This learning series is for professional continuing education purposes only. It is not intended to replace Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR) Chapter 851 Division 047 *Standards for Registered Nurse Delegation of Nursing Care Tasks to Unlicensed Persons* (Secretary of State, 2004, February 12).

This learning series does not address all regulations contained within Chapter 851 Division 047. It does not cover rules specific to the delegation of medication administration by the intravenous route, teaching of administration of noninjectable medications and periodic inspection and teaching the performance of tasks for an anticipated emergency.

SPD is a continuing education provider approved by the California Board of Registered Nursing. This course is approved for 4.0 contact hours. Application for continuing education contact hours can be found at the end of this learning series.

As nurses, we have the professional responsibility to act in the public interest by providing safe, effective and quality nursing services. Continuing education is one means by which we ensure this trust is met. Your completion of this self-directed learning series demonstrates your commitment to attaining the skills and knowledge necessary to provide safe, effective and quality nursing services. Your actions also serve to promote professional nursing excellence within Oregon's long-term care system.

MODULE ONE: Oregon RN delegation fundamentals

Oregon is one of a few states in the nation with a Nurse Practice Act (NPA) that supports an RN's *discretionary authority* to delegate a task of nursing care. This scope of RN practice authority is a key piece of the state's regulatory framework that enables Oregon's long-term care (LTC) system to lead the nation in community-based care (CBC) alternatives to nursing facility placement.

This scope of authority also brings great responsibility to the RN practicing within Oregon's long-term care system — the responsibility of the individual practitioner to understand the rules governing RN delegation and to achieve the competence to delegate and supervise.

Module One learner objectives

Following completion of Module One of this learning series, the RN will be able to:

- 1. Describe RN delegation in Oregon, and
- 2. Identify settings where registered nurse delegation can occur.

RN delegation in Oregon

In response to the increasing number of people receiving LTC services in CBC settings, Oregon statute was amended in 1987 to allow RNs to delegate nursing care tasks to unlicensed persons. The Oregon State Board of Nursing (OSBN) adopted the first rules on RN delegation into Chapter 851 Division 45 in 1988. Today, Oregon's RN delegation rules are found in Chapter 851 Division 047 and are commonly referred to as Division 47 of Oregon's NPA.

Oregon nursing law gives the RN much discretion in what nursing tasks can be considered for delegation to lay care providers. This is due to the descriptive nature of Division 47. This descriptive format grants the RN with the discretionary authority to examine each unique client, nursing care task, care provider and environmental situation to determine if delegation can safely occur.

This descriptive format is in contrast to other states whose nursing law prescribes what nursing tasks will be delegated and weakens or removes the RN's discretionary authority to choose to delegate or not. It is important to note that some states' NPAs do not include delegation, or they contain a definition of delegation that varies greatly from that of Oregon's.

In Oregon, each time a registered nurse considers delegation as a way to support a client in a CBC setting, the RN must apply the practice standards and descriptive guidance set forth in Division 47 to make the determination if delegation can be done safely.

The RN's discretionary authority is not to be taken lightly. Division 47 clearly articulates that prior to agreeing to delegate a task of nursing care a registered nurse has the responsibility to understand the OARs for RN delegation and achieve the competence to delegate and supervise. Please take a moment to read OAR 851-047-000 to evaluate if you meet this OSBN administrative rule requirement. Chapter 851 Division 047 *Standards for Registered Nurse Delegation of Nursing Care Tasks to Unlicensed Persons* is located in the Appendix of this learning series.

Understanding Division 47 and achieving the competence to delegate and supervise are of great importance to the RN who exercises his/her scope of authority to delegate. This is due in part to an Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) that can protect the RN from civil damages for the actions of the unlicensed person in performance of a task of nursing care. But this protection is dependant on the RN following the *delegation processes* set forth in Division 47. ORS 678.036 reads as follows:

"A nurse who delegates the provision of nursing care to another person pursuant to ORS 678.150 shall not be subject to an action for civil damages for the performance of the person to whom nursing care is delegated unless the person is acting pursuant to specific instructions from the nurse or the nurse fails to leave instructions when the nurse should have done so."

Oregon is one of only a few states with this type of statutory protection for professional nurses who practice pursuant to their NPA.

Before we proceed to the next section of Module One, here are some principles that underpin RN delegation in Oregon. Be mindful of these principles as you progress through the RN delegation self-directed learning series:

- The OSBN holds regulatory authority over the RN who delegates;
- The decision to delegate or not rests solely with the RN; the RN has the right to refuse to delegate a task of nursing care to an unlicensed person if the RN believes that it would be unsafe to delegate or is unable to provide adequate supervision;
- For every delegation event, a registered nurse examines each unique client, nursing care task, care provider and environmental situation to determine if delegation can safely occur;

- The RN may only delegate to the number of unlicensed persons who will remain competent in performing the task of nursing care; in other words, the unlicensed person to whom a task of nursing care has been delegated must have the opportunity to perform the task at a regular frequency to maintain competency in its performance;
- The RN may only delegate to the number of unlicensed persons who can be safely supervised by the RN; and
- For the purpose of delegation rules, unlicensed persons do not include members of the client's immediate family; family members may perform tasks of nursing care without specific delegation from a registered nurse.

Division 47 definitions

In total, the OARs for RN delegation define twenty-six key words and concepts. Understanding the expressed meaning of all of these words and concepts is essential to safe and accurate application of Division 47 rules to community-based nursing practice in Oregon. This section of Module One will discuss four of those words/concepts.

From this point forward, all words and concepts defined within Division 47 that appear in this learning series will be initially *bold font and italicized*. It is your responsibility to actively seek the definition of each these words/concepts as you progress through this learning series.

Delegation

Division 47 defines *delegation* as follows: "Delegation means that a Registered Nurse authorizes an unlicensed person to perform a task of a nursing care in selected situations and indicates that authorization in writing. The delegation process includes nursing assessment of a client in a specific situation, evaluation of the ability of the unlicensed persons, teaching the task, ensuring supervision of the unlicensed person and re-evaluating the task at regular intervals (Oregon Secretary of State, 2004, February 12)."

In short, delegation means that a registered nurse authorizes an unlicensed person to perform a specific task of nursing care on a specific client in a CBC setting by using a specific process. Both the process and authorization are documented in writing by the RN.

Unlicensed person

Division 47 defines *unlicensed person* as follows: "Unlicensed Person, for the purpose of Division 47, means an individual who is not licensed to practice nursing, medicine, or any other health occupation requiring a license in Oregon, but who provides tasks of nursing care or is

taught to administer noninjectable medications. A certified nursing assistant, as defined by these rules, is an unlicensed person. For the purposes of these delegation rules, unlicensed persons do not include members of the client's immediate family. Family members may perform tasks of nursing care without specific delegation from a registered nurse. The terms unlicensed person and caregiver may be used interchangeably (Oregon Secretary of State, 2004, February 12)."

In Oregon's CBC settings, unlicensed persons are known by many different names. Some of these names include, but are not limited to, *providers*, *care providers*, *home care workers*, *client employed providers*, *universal providers and unlicensed assistive personnel*.

While practicing in a CBC setting, you may encounter a care provider who also happens to be a certified nursing assistant (CNA) or certified medication aide (CMA). While CNAs and CMAs may possess a broader knowledge base related to client care supports, when working in a CBC setting these care providers are defined as *unlicensed persons*.

Tasks of nursing care

Division 47 defines *tasks of nursing care* as follows: "Tasks of Nursing Care means procedures that require the education and license of a Registered Nurse or Licensed Practical Nurse to perform (Oregon Secretary of State, 2004, February 12)."

If you are not certain if a specific task or procedure is considered a task of nursing care, please reference the OSBN Policy *Oregon State Board of Nursing Scope-of-Practice Decision-Making Guideline for RN and LPN Practice* (Oregon State Board of Nursing, 2006, November 9). If you continue to need guidance, contact the OSBN and ask to speak with a nursing practice consultant. Contact information for OSBN can be found in the Appendix of this learning series.

Community-based care setting

Division 47 defines *community-based care* as follows: "a setting that does not exist primarily for the purpose of providing medical/nursing care, but where nursing care is incidental to the setting. These settings include adult foster care homes, assisted living facilities, child foster homes, private homes, public schools and twenty-four hour residential care facilities (Oregon Secretary of State, 2004, February 12)."

CBC settings do not include acute or long-term care settings where the regular presence of a registered nurse is required by state statute or administrative rule. These care settings are typically hospitals and nursing facilities.

The authoritative source for Division 47 definitions is the rule itself. Please access OAR Chapter 851 Division 47 at this time to use as a reference as you progress through this learning series.

MODULE TWO: The process of RN delegation in Oregon

Module Two learner objectives

Following completion of Module Two of this learning series, the RN will be able to:

- 1. Explain the process of RN delegation of nursing care tasks to unlicensed persons, and
- 2. Identify OSBN standards for documentation of the process of RN delegation.

Division 47 identifies the specific process that must be utilized by the RN who delegates a task of nursing care. This process is articulated step-by-step in OAR 851-047-0030(3) (a) through (k). Please take a moment to read that section of Division 47 prior to proceeding with Module Two.

OAR 851-047-0030(3)(a)-(k) identifies the process of delegation. This process can best described as a linkage of specific actions taken by the RN. Based upon the RN's evaluation of each action's respective outcome, the RN has the authority and responsibility to do one of two things:

- 1. Proceed to another step in the delegation process, or
- 2. Make the determination that delegation is not appropriate given the client, the task, the care provider and/or the environmental situation.

The delegation process

Presented below are the specific components identified within the delegation process. As you proceed through the list, evaluate past or current client cases that you have had within the context of the information presented. Delegation components include the following:

(a) Nursing assessment

The RN begins the delegation process with the completion of a *nursing assessment*. In assessing the client, the RN collects and records data based on and pertinent to the client's immediate condition and anticipated needs. The assessment data obtained serves as the foundation for the RN's decision to delegate the task of nursing care or not. Data are recorded in a retrievable format.

(b) Determination of client's condition

The RN evaluates recorded assessment data to determine the stability or instability of the client's condition. RN delegation can only occur for a client with a *stable/predictable* condition.

Delegation cannot occur if the client has an *unstable condition*.

(c) Consideration of the nursing task

The RN must consider the nature of the task of nursing care, the complexity of the task, and any risks involved with performance of the task. The RN also considers the skills and knowledge necessary for someone to perform the task.

(d) Determine if an unlicensed person can perform the task.

Following consideration of the task, the RN must decide if an unlicensed person would be able to perform the task safely without the direct RN supervision. The RN has the right to refuse to delegate a task of nursing care to an unlicensed person if the RN believes it would be unsafe to do so.

(e) Determine how frequently the client's condition will need to be reassessed.

We previously learned that the client's condition must remain stable and predictable in order for delegation to be appropriate. The RN must decide how often the client's condition will need to be reassessed should delegation proceed.

The identified reassessment frequency will need to be such that it allows the RN the opportunity to determine that delegation continues to be safe and appropriate based upon the client's condition.

(f) Evaluate the skills, ability and willingness of the unlicensed person.

The RN must evaluate the skills and ability of the unlicensed person along with his/her willingness to perform the task of nursing care. During this process step, the RN must be mindful of the cognitive, perceptual, and motor skills necessary for a person to safely perform the task of nursing care. The RN has the right and responsibility to refuse to delegate a task of nursing care to an unlicensed person if the RN believes that it would be unsafe to do so.

(g) Provide initial direction by teaching the task of nursing care.

The RN must provide *initial direction* by *teaching* the task of nursing care to the unlicensed person. Initial direction includes teaching the following:

- 1. The proper procedure/technique for performing the task,
- 2. Why the task is necessary,
- 3. The risks associated with the task,

- 4. Anticipated side effects of the task,
- 5. The appropriate response to untoward effects or side effects,
- 6. Observation of the client's responses, and
- 7. Documentation requirements of the nursing task of care.

(h) Observe the unlicensed person performing the task.

The RN must observe the unlicensed person perform the task of nursing care for the client. This requirement not only ensures that the unlicensed person can perform the task safely and accurately for the client, but that the client is comfortable with the unlicensed person performing the task for them.

(i) Leave procedural guidance for performance of the task.

The RN must leave *procedural guidance* for performance of the nursing task for the unlicensed person to use as a reference. These written instructions must be appropriate to the level of care and knowledge base of the unlicensed person and include the following:

- 1. A step by step outline of how the task of nursing care is to be performed,
- 2. Signs and symptoms to be observed, and
- 3. Guidelines for what to do if signs and symptoms occur.

The significance of these written instructions is twofold. First, client health and safety is facilitated with client specific nursing task instructions.

Secondly, remember ORS 678.036 as presented in Module One? This statute states, "A nurse who delegates the provision of nursing care to another person pursuant to ORS 678.150 shall not be subject to an action for civil damages for the performance of the person to whom nursing care is delegated unless the person is acting pursuant to specific instructions from the nurse or the nurse fails to leave instructions when the nurse should have done so."

This means that documenting clear and correct client specific nursing task instructions serves as protection against civil damages as a result of someone else's actions.

(j) Instruct the unlicensed person that the task is not transferable.

The RN must instruct the unlicensed person that the task of nursing care being taught is specific to one client only. This includes instructing the unlicensed person that the task can not be performed on other clients and that the unlicensed person cannot teach other care providers to perform the task.

(k) Documentation requirements for RN delegation.

Division 47 clearly identifies what must be documented by the RN during the delegation process. The required documentation components are as follows (Oregon Secretary of State, 2004, February 12):

- 1. The nursing assessment and condition of the client;
- 2. The rationale for deciding the task of nursing care can be safely delegated to unlicensed persons;
- 3. The skills, ability and willingness of the unlicensed person to whom the task is being delegated;
- 4. That the task of nursing care was taught to the unlicensed person and that he/she is competent to safely perform the task;
- 5. That the unlicensed person has received instructions that include risks, side effects and the appropriate response, and that the unlicensed person is knowledgeable of the risk factors/side effects and knows to whom he/she is to report the same;
- 6. That the unlicensed person was instructed that the task is specific to one client, is not transferable to other clients and cannot be taught to other care providers by the unlicensed person;
- 7. How frequently the client will need to be reassessed by the RN regarding the continued delegation of the nursing care task; this documentation must also include the *rationale* for the frequency chosen by the RN, based on the client's needs;
- 8. How frequently the unlicensed person should be supervised and revaluated, including the rationale for the frequency; the rationale must be based on the competency of the unlicensed person; and
- 9. That the RN takes responsibility for delegating the task to the unlicensed person and ensures that supervision will occur for as long as the RN is responsible for the delegation.

Many RN delegation documentation forms exist within the various CBC practice settings, facilities and agencies. If you utilize a pre-constructed form to document RN delegation, it is your professional responsibility to ensure that the information you record on the form demonstrates the documentation components required by Division 47.

The decision to delegate or not

It is the sole responsibility of the RN to decide when, how, and if it is appropriate for an unlicensed person to be delegated a task of nursing care.

Based upon an evaluation of each of the delegation process outcomes, the RN has the authority and responsibility to do one of two things:

- 1. Proceed to another step in the delegation process, or
- 2. Make the determination that delegation is not appropriate given the client, task, care provider and/or environmental situation.

The decision to delegate or not delegate a task of nursing care rests solely with the RN.

Think about actual CBC situations involving clients in need of health supports and care providers to assist with client health support needs. Every situation will be unique — different clients, different nursing tasks, different care provider(s) and different settings. Oregon nursing law requires the RN to examine each unique client, nursing care task, care provider, and environmental situation to determine if delegation can safely occur.

The time it takes an RN to complete the delegation process for any of these care situations will be very different, as well. The process could take a few hours, or it may take several visits over several days.

Let's now imagine that an RN has completed the entire delegation process for one of these situations. At the point in time the RN actually authorizes a specific unlicensed person to perform a specific task of nursing care for a specific client in a selected situation and puts that authorization in writing, that unlicensed person is officially considered delegated to perform the task of nursing care.

The process of periodic inspection, supervision and evaluation of a task of nursing care

Following an RN's written authorization of an unlicensed person to perform a task of nursing care, the RN must provide ongoing *periodic inspection*, *supervision and evaluation of a task of nursing care*.

Periodic inspection, supervision and evaluation of a task of nursing care means that at regular intervals the RN:

- Assesses and evaluates the condition of the client for whom the task of nursing care had been delegated,
- Reviews the procedures and directions established for the provision of the nursing care, and
- Reviews the competence of the unlicensed person in performance of the task.

Division 47 provides specific standards and guidance on how the RN is to carry out this process. The standards and guidance are as follows:

- The RN assesses the condition of the client to determine if his/her condition remains stable and predictable, and
- The RN observes the competence of the unlicensed person to determine that he/she remains both able and willing to safely perform the task of nursing care; this observation may be done by use of technology that enables the RN to visualize both the client and the unlicensed person.

Please note that the process of periodic inspection, supervision and re-evaluation of a task of nursing care must occur within at least 60 days from the initial date of delegation. However, the RN has the authority and responsibility to do this at a more frequent interval until satisfied with the skill of the unlicensed person and/or to verify the stability of the client's health status.

The intent of periodic inspection, supervision and evaluation of a task of nursing care is to evaluate whether or not to continue delegation of the task of nursing care based on an assessment of the care provider and condition of the client.

Following the initial inspection, supervision and evaluation of a task of nursing care, the RN must determine subsequent intervals for assessing the client and observing the competence of the unlicensed person in performance of the task. The determination of subsequent intervals must be based upon the evaluation of the following seven items as identified in Division 47:

- 1. The task of nursing being performed,
- 2. Whether the RN has taught the same task to the same unlicensed person for a previous client,
- 3. The length of time the RN has worked with the unlicensed person,
- 4. The stability of the client's condition and assessment for potential change,
- 5. The skill of the unlicensed person and his/her demonstration of competence in performance of the task,

- 6. The RN's experience regarding the ability of the unlicensed person to recognize and report change in client condition, and
- 7. The presence of other health care professionals who can provide support and backup to the unlicensed person to whom the task of nursing care has been delegated.

Be mindful that each and every delegation situation that you become involved with will be unique. While this list of seven evaluative items will remain constant for any given delegation, the actual people, the nursing task, the CBC setting and ancillary supports that make up the list will not. The RN must approach each delegation in a responsible, accountable and ethical manner when determining at what interval these assessment and supervisory visits will occur.

Division 47 provides additional guidance to assist the RN in determining at what frequency these assessment/supervisory visits should occur (*Oregon Secretary of State*, 2004, *February 12*):

"The less likely the client's condition will change and/or the greater the skill of the unlicensed person, the greater the interval between assessment/supervisory visits may be. In any case, the interval between assessment/supervisory visits may be no greater than every 180 days."

It is important to note that these assessment/supervisory time frames are not static. Any number of changes can occur at any given time that would impact the frequency of the assessment/supervisory visits or even the appropriateness of continued delegation.

The processes of RN delegation and the assessment/supervisory visits are designed to make the identification of an outcome change in any one of the components cause for action by the RN. These processes are continually implemented and their outcomes continually evaluated throughout the life of the delegation.

MODULE THREE: RN delegation practice situations

Module Three learner objectives

Following completion of Module Three of the learning series, the RN will be able to:

- 1. Describe the process of transferring registered nurse delegation and supervision to another RN, and
- 2. Identify three situations where rescinding a delegation would be appropriate.

When the delegating RN and the supervising RN are two different individuals

While it is expected that the RN who delegates a task of nursing care to an unlicensed person also supervise that person in performance of the task, there might be a situation where supervision of the unlicensed person is provided by another RN (Oregon Secretary of State, 2004, February 12). Division 47 allows for this situation to occur with the condition that the supervising RN is familiar with the client, the skill of the unlicensed person and the plan of care.

There are also specific actions that both RNs must take (*Oregon Secretary of State*, 2004, *February 12*):

- 1. The delegating RN must document the justifications for the separation of delegation and supervision from the standpoint of delivering effective client care,
- 2. The supervising RN must agree, in writing, to perform the supervision, and
- 3. The supervising RN is either present during teaching and delegation, or is fully informed of the instruction, approves the plan for teaching and agrees that the unlicensed person who is taught the task is competent to perform the task.

The acts of delegating and supervising must be viewed with equal importance to ensure the safe delivery of nursing care tasks for clients.

Transferring of delegation and supervision from one RN to another

If a registered nurse is no longer able to provide periodic supervision of an unlicensed person to whom a task of nursing care had been delegated, that RN may choose to transfer the delegation and supervision to another RN. If transferring of delegation and supervision can be done safely, it is preferable to rescinding delegation. Transferring of delegation and supervision can promote continuity of client care.

A registered nurse must follow a specific process when transferring delegation and supervision to another RN. The process is as follows (Oregon Secretary of State, 2004, February 12):

- Review the client's condition, the teaching plan, the competence of the unlicensed person, the written instructions and the plan for ongoing supervisory visits and client reassessment, and
- Redo any parts of the delegation process that need to be changed as a result of the transfer.

There are specific documentation requirements when transferring delegation and supervision to another RN. The following documentation must be signed by both registered nurses (Oregon Secretary of State, 2004, February 12):

- The transfer and acceptance of the delegation and supervision responsibility,
- The reason for the transfer, and
- The effective date of the transfer.

It is important that the transfer of delegation and supervision from one RN to another be communicated to all persons who need to know.

Rescinding delegation

A registered nurse has the authority to rescind the delegation. To rescind a delegation means that the RN ends, or repeals, the delegation of a task of nursing care to an unlicensed person.

The decision to rescind delegation is the sole responsibility of the RN who originally delegated the task of nursing care. This decision is based on professional judgment.

An RN has the authority to decide that rescinding delegation is appropriate for various reasons. Here are some examples:

- The nursing care task is no longer needed by the client,
- The client is no longer residing in a CBC setting,
- The care provider no longer works for or with the client,
- The condition of the client changes to a level where delegation is no longer safe,
- The unlicensed person demonstrates an inability to perform the task safely,
- The RN is no longer able to provide adequate supervision of the unlicensed person,
- The RN is no longer employed in the setting where delegation occurred, and
- The skill of the unlicensed person, the longevity of the relationship and the client's condition in combination make delegation no longer necessary.

When rescinding a delegation of a task of nursing care, the RN should document this decision along with the reason/rationale for rescinding. The RN also has a responsibility to communicate his/her decision to the appropriate client care team members.

Post test questions

You have completed the content component of this self directed learning series. Pleae reflect on the information presented as you respond to each the following post test questions.

If you are applying for continuing education (CE) contact hours, please record your answers on the CE Post Test Answer Sheet on page 20.

- 1. By Division 47 definition, delegation means authorizing an unlicensed person to perform a task of nursing care in selected situations and documenting that authorization in writing.

 True or false?
- 2. When working in a community-based care setting, a person who holds certification as a nursing assistant is considered an unlicensed person.

True or false?

- 3. Community-based care settings include:
 - A. Schools
 - B. Foster homes
 - C. Private homes
 - D. All of the above
- 4. The RN may only delegate to the number of unlicensed persons who can be safely supervised by the RN.

True or false?

5. The decision to delegate or not rests solely with the RN.

True or false?

- 6. Which of the following are considered delegation process steps?
 - A. Nursing assessment
 - B. Initial direction
 - C. Evaluation of the unlicensed person's skills, ability and willingness to perform the task
 - D. All of the above
- 7. The task of nursing care being considered for delegation can impact the RN's periodic inspection, supervision and evaluation frequency.

True or false?

8. While each delegation situation will be unique due to the client, care provider(s), nursing task and CBC setting, the process of delegation will always be the same.

True or false?

- 9. Division 047 identifies seven things that a registered nurse evaluates when performing periodic inspection, supervision and evaluation of a nursing care task. Identify three of these.
- 10. Written procedural guidance for performance of the task must be appropriate to the level of care being provided and to the knowledge base of the unlicensed person performing the task:
 - A. True
 - B. False
- 11. Which Division 047 statement is true when the delegating RN and the supervising RN are two different individuals?
 - A. The delegating RN must document the justification for the separation of delegation and supervision from the standpoint of RN availability.
 - B. The supervising RN must be fully informed of the delegation instructions and approve the plan for teaching.
 - C. The supervising RN need not agree to the supervision in writing.
 - D. The determination of the unlicensed person's competency is left to the delegating RN.
- 12. When transferring delegation from one RN to another, both RNs must document:
 - A. The transfer and acceptance of the delegation and supervision responsibility.
 - B. The reason for the transfer.
 - C. The effective date of the transfer.
 - D. All of the above.
- 13. It is not necessary for the incoming RN to repeat any parts of the delegation process as a result of a transfer of delegation.

	B.	False									
14	14. The decision to rescind delegation is the sole responsibility of the RN who originally delegated the task of nursing care.										
	A.	True									
	B.	False									
15	15. It is never necessary to rescind the delegation of a nursing task to a care provider that no longer works with the client:										
	A.	True									
	B.	False									

True

A.

Application for continuing education (CE) contact hours

Seniors and People with Disabilities is a continuing education provider approved by the California Board of Registered Nursing, Provider Number CEP 14432 for 4.0 CE contact hours. To apply for contact hours, mail this completed form, copies of your completed one-page post test answer sheet, a completed course evaluation and a \$20 check payable to "SPD" to:

RN Delegation CEs SPD 500 Summer St. NE, E13 Salem OR 97301

Clearly print information for all fields. Contact hours will not be granted for illegible and/or incomplete applications. Illegible and/or incomplete applications can not be returned. Keep a copy of your completed application and one page post test answet sheet for your records.

Name as it appears on nursing license:-							
Complete mailing address including city, state and zip code:							
E-m	E-mail address (for notification of future nursing CE activities):						
Con	nplete nursing license number: (include all letters and numbers and state of issue)						
Date	e course completed:						
Prir	nary practice setting:						
CE	application checklist:						
	Completed application for continuing education (CE) contact hours						
	Completed one-page answer sheet						
	Completed course evaluation form						
	\$20 check payable to "SPD"						

Post test answer sheet for RN delegation CEs

- 1. T or F
- 2. T or F
- 3. A, B, C, or D
- 4. T or F
- 5. T or F
- 6. A, B, C, or D
- 7. T or F
- 8. T or F
- 9. 1.____
 - 2.____
 - 3.____
- 10. T or F
- 11. A, B, C, or D
- 12. A, B, C, or D
- 13. T or F
- 14. T or F
- 15. T or F

Please provide us with constructive feedback so that we can better meet your CBC continuing education needs:

Course evaluation Registered Nurse Delegation in Oregon

Please rate the extent to which each outcome was met using the follow scale:

1=No; 3=Neutral; 5=Yes

	No				Yes
Extend to which course met the stated objectives.	1	2	3	4	5
Applicability of information presented.	1	2	3	4	5
Usability of self-directed learning format.	1	2	3	4	5
Would you access other SPD self-directed learning courses as they become available?	1	2	3	4	5

Discuss two concepts that you learned through taking this self-directed learning course that you will be able to apply immediately to your CBC practice:

Appendix documents

Oregon State Board of Nursing (2006, November 9). Oregon State Board of Nursing Scope-of-Practice Decision-Making Guideline for RN and LPN Practice. Oregon State Board of Nursing.

www.osbn.state.or.us/OSBN/Position_Papers.shtml

Oregon Secretary of State (2004, February 12). Oregon Administrative Rules Chapter 851 Division 47: Standards for Registered Nurse Delegation of Nursing Care Tasks to Unlicensed Persons.

www.osbn.state.or.us/OSBN/adminrules.shtml

References

- 1. Oregon State Board of Nursing (2006, November 9). Oregon State Board of Nursing Scope-of-Practice Decision-Making Guideline for RN and LPN Practice. Oregon State Board of Nursing.
- 2. Oregon Secretary of State (2004, February 12). Oregon Administrative Rules Chapter 851 Division 47: Standards for Registered Nurse Delegation of Nursing Care Tasks to Unlicensed Persons.
- 3. Oregon Secretary of State (1987 c.369 §3). Oregon Revised Statute 678.036 Nurses; Nursing Home Administrators.

Appendix contact information

For questions on RN delegation rules:

Oregon State Board of Nursing Contact Information 17938 SW Upper Boones Ferry Rd. Portland, Oregon 97224-7012

Phone: 971-673-0685

www.osbn.state.or.us

For questions concerning delegation within SPD's licensed and certified settings:

Office of Licensing and Quality of Care Health Support Unit 500 Summer St. NE, E-13 Salem, OR 97301

Phone: 503-947-4229

CRNHSU@state.or.us (Include RN Delegation in subject line.)

Upon request this publication can be furnished in an alternate format for individuals with disabilities.

Available formats are: large print, Braille, audio tape recording, electronic format and oral presentation.